
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, June 16, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Reaffirmation of Oath of Office

The Oath of Office will be read by Councillor DeHart.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 10

Public Hearing - May 26, 2015
Regular Meeting - May 26, 2015

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 BL11056 (OCP15-0002) - Shared Gardens Amendments to OCP Bylaw No. 10500 11 - 12

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11056 second and third readings in order amend Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500.

4.2 BL11096 (TA15-0001) - Amendments to include Multi-Residential Shared and
Community Gardens in Zoning Bylaw No. 8000

13 - 18

To give Bylaw No. 11096 second and third readings in order to amend City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

4.3 5000 Gordon Drive, BL11098 (OCP15-0005) - No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. 19 - 20

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11098 second and third readings and adoption in order to
change the future land use designation of the subject property.

4.4 5000 Gordon Drive, BL11099 (Z15-0019) - No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. 21 - 22

To give Bylaw No. 11099 second and third readings, and adoption, in order to
rezone the subject property from A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the RU2H -
Medium Lot Housing Hillside Area zone.



5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 1370 Water Street, LL15-0005 - Cactus Club Cafe 23 - 38

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after
midnight, a Restaurant Lounge Endorsement, and a Patron Non-Participation
Entertainment Endorsement for a new Food Primary establishment to be
located on the subject property.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 4962 Lakeshore Road, BL11068 (Z15-0001) - Shane Jones 39 - 39

To adopt Bylaw No. 11068 in order to rezone the subject property to allow for
a carriage house.

7.2 4962 Lakeshore Road, DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 - Shane Jones 40 - 57

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a form and character Development Permit and Variances for the
conversion of an existing Accessory Building to a Carriage House.

7.3 1429 KLO Road, BL10782 (Z11-0083) - Arnold & Melitta Frank 58 - 58

To adopt Bylaw No. 10782 in order to rezone the subject property to allow for
a mobile home park.

7.4 1429 KLO Road, DP14-0258 & DVP14-0259 - Arnold & Melitta Frank and Jamac
Holdings Ltd.

59 - 96

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider: a) Development Permit application for the form and character of
a modular home park on the subject property. b) Development Variance
Permit to vary the rear landscape buffer area abutting ALR, to vary the
landscape buffers to a mobile home space, the amount of required private
open space and the minimum setback between mobile homes.



7.5 283 Lake Road, HAP15-0003 - City of Kelowna 97 - 112

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Heritage Alteration Permit for the form and character and
proposed variances of a single detached house and accessory building.

7.6 228 Caliburn Court, DVP15-0093 - David Wood 113 - 127

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit to permit additional height for a
portion of a proposed accessory building.

7.7 840 Coronation Avenue, DP15-0090 & DVP15-0091 - Kelsey Fleming 128 - 143

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit Application for an addition to a single
family dwelling and a Development Variance Permit to vary a side yard
setback.

7.8 1441 McInnes Avenue, DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 - George Wannop 144 - 163

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary lot width for semi-detached
housing.

7.9 776 Fordham Road, DVP15-0050 - Dave Rolleston 164 - 172

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit application for minimum lot depth
to facilitate a two lot subdivision.



7.10 605 Monterey Road, DP14-0248 & DVP15-0055 - Marcel & Bertha Gal 173 - 188

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of a second
dwelling, and a Development Variance Permit to reduce the minimum rear
yard and distance between dwellings to facilitate the development of a second
dwelling.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11056 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP15 – 0002 
Shared Gardens Amendments to Official Community Plan  

Bylaw No. 10500 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT Chapter 5 – Development Process, Objective 5.2 Develop sustainability be 
amended by adding in its appropriate location the following new Policy .5 with the 
Economic Sustainability, Social Sustainability, Environmental Sustainability and 
Cultural Sustainability  icons that reads: 
 
“Policy .5 Integrated Land Use.  Integrate land use approaches wherever possible 

to improve opportunities for biodiversity, ecosystem connectivity, 
recreation, agriculture and local food production, while reducing 
conflicts.” 

 
2. AND THAT Chapter 5 – Development Process, Objective 5.13 Develop process be 

amended by adding in its appropriate location the following new Policy .13 with the 
Economic Sustainability, Social Sustainability, Environmental Sustainability and 
Cultural Sustainability  icons that reads: 
 
“Policy .4 Multi-Residential Shared Garden.  Encourage new development to 

include contiguous space intended for garden space for residents.” 
 

3. AND THAT Chapter 14 – Urban Design DP Guidelines, 10.0 Decks, balconies, rooftops, 
and common outdoor amenity space be amended by adding a new 10.5 as follows: 
 
“10.5 Multi-Residential Shared Garden plots should: 

 Take inspiration from the site’s architecture and landscape treatments for 
design and layout. 

 Be located to maximize sunlight access. 

 Incorporate enhanced universal accessibility features on some plots. 

 Ensure landscape installation standards including growing medium depth 

and quality meet the requirements of the BC Landscape Standard (Latest 

Edition) and/or the Master Municipal Construction Document (Year 2000 

Gold Edition).” 

 

 

11



 
 

4. AND THAT Chapter 17 – Definitions, be amended by adding a new section F with a 
new definition for Food Security as follows: 
 
“FOOD SECURITY 
All community residents have access to sufficient, safe, healthy and culturally 
acceptable foods produced in a manner that promotes health, protects the 
environment and adds economic and social value to communities.” 
 

5. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 1st day of June, 2015. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 

 
 

 

12



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11096 
TA15-0001 – Amendments to Include Multi-Residential Shared 

and Community Gardens 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 2 – Interpretation be amended 
by adding the following new definitions in their appropriate location: 
 
“COMMUNITY GARDEN means the recreational growing of plants, on a publically or 
privately owned parcel, and does not include the growing and subsequent sale of 
produce for commercial purposes. This use is limited to production activities which are 
not deemed to be noxious or offensive to adjacent properties or the general public. 
This definition does not include the keeping of poultry and/or livestock. 
 
MULTI-RESIDENTIAL SHARED GARDEN means a portion of a parcel, shared with a 
multi-residential dwelling that is used for the recreational growing of plants for food 
and/or pleasure for the residents of the multi-residential dwelling. It does not include 
the growing and sale of produce for commercial purposes.” 
 

2. AND THAT Section 9 – Specific Use Regulations be amended by adding the following 
new sub-sections as follows in their appropriate location: 
 
 
“9.11 Multi-Residential Shared Garden 
 
  
9.11.1  A Multi-residential shared garden must be solely for the use of the 

residents on the parcel. Multi-residential shared gardens shall: 
   

(a) be screened from adjacent streets and/or parking area by landscaping; 
(b) be integrated into the overall landscape design; 
(c) be located on a parcel where exposure to sunlight is optimal; 
(d) have no outdoor storage of equipment  and materials related to the 

multi-residential shared garden kept on the parcel;  
(e) not have equipment, building or structures of any sort within 3m of a 

property line flanking a street; 
(f) an accessory building or structure may be constructed to support a 

multi-residential shared garden which may be no larger than 30m2 ; 
(g) have an easily accessible water source; 
(h) not block emergency routes or access; 
(i) follow the City of Kelowna’s Pesticide Use Regulation Bylaw No. 9920; 
(j) not take up a designated vehicle parking or loading spaces; and 
(k) provide an onsite location for odour-free organic waste disposal or 

transport organic waste to a suitable disposal facility. 
 

9.11.2  Multi- residential Shared Gardens shall provide a minimum of one garden 
plot that is universally accessible, a minimum of 0.75m high and located 
closest to the principal building and/or multi-residential shared garden 
entrance. 

13



 
9.12  Community Garden 
 
 
9.12.1  In order to be permitted on a parcel a Community Garden  shall: 
 

(a) conform to the applicable zoning requirements for accessory buildings 
or structures, or greenhouse when accommodating these structures in 
conjunction with a community garden; 

(b) be delineated from adjacent streets and/or parking areas by 
landscaping; 

(c) have no or materials related to the community garden stored outside 
on the parcel; 

(d) not have any equipment, building or structures of any sort within 3m of 
an adjacent street; 

(e) have an easily accessible water source; 
(f) follow the City of Kelowna’s Pesticide Use Regulation Bylaw No. 9920; 
(g) provide an onsite location for odour-free organic waste disposal or 

transport organic waste to a suitable disposal facility; 
(h) not take up designated vehicle parking or loading spaces; and 
(i) be limited to one freestanding sign or a fence mounted sign  that is a 

maximum of 2.0m high and a maximum of 3.0m2 sign area that displays 
the name of the community garden.” 
 

3. AND THAT Section 12 – Rural Residential Zones be amended by: 
 
a) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub-

Section 12.1.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

b) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 12.2.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
c) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 12.3.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs. 
 

4. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones be amended by: 
 
a) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.1.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

b) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.2.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
c) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.3.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

d) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.4.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
e) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.5.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

f) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.6.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
g) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.7.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

14



h) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.8.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

i) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 
location in Sub-Section 13.8.3 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

j) adding to Sub-Section 13.8.6 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs (i) 
and (j) that reads: 
 
“(i) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

 
(j) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 

major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 
unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.” 

 
k) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.9.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

l) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 
location in Sub-Section 13.9.3 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

m) adding to Sub-Section 13.9.6 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs (h) 
and (i) that reads: 
 
“(h) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

 
(i) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 

major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 
unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.”  

 
n) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.10.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

o) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 
location in Sub-Section 13.10.3 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

p) adding to Sub-Section 13.10.6 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs 
(h) and (i) that reads: 
 
“(h) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

 
(i) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 

major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 

15



unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.”  

 
q) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.11.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

r) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 
location in Sub-Section 13.11.3 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

s) adding to Sub-Section 13.11.6 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs 
(g) and (h) that reads: 
 
“(g) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

(h) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 
major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 
unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.”  

 
t) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.12.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

u) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 
location in Sub-Section 13.12.3 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

v) adding to Sub-Section 13.12.6 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs 
(g) and (h) that reads: 
 
“(g) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

 
(h) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 

major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 
unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.”  

 
w) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.13.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

x) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.14.3 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
y) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 13.15.3 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; and 
 

z) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 13.16.3 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs;  

 
aa) adding “Multi-Residential Shared Gardens” as a Secondary Use, it is appropriate 

location in Sub-Section 13.16.4 Secondary Uses and renumber subsequent 
subparagraphs; 
 

16



 
bb) adding to Sub-Section 13.16.7 Development Regulations, a new sub-paragraphs 

(c) and (d) that reads: 
 
“(c) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing, group home, 

major or supportive housing, major developments up to 1.0m of 
required rear yard landscaping buffer may be transferred to a multi-
residential shared garden on the same parcel. 

 
(d) For multiple dwelling housing, congregate housing or group home, 

major developments 10% of the private open space requirement per 
unit may be transferred to a multi-residential shared garden located 
on the same parcel.” 

 
5. AND THAT Section 14 – Commercial Zones be amended by: 

 
a) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 14.1.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

b) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 14.2.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
c) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 14.3.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

d) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 14.4.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
e) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 14.5.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

f) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 14.6.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
g) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 14.7.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

h) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 14.8.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
i) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 14.9.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; and 
 

j) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 14.10.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs. 
 

6. AND THAT Section 16 – Public & Insttutional Zones be amended by: 
 
a) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 16.1.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 
b) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 16.2.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

c) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 16.3.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 

17



d) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 16.4.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
e) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 16.5.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

f) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 16.6.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
g) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 

Section 16.7.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 
 

h) adding “Community Garden” as a Principal Use, it is appropriate location in Sub 
Section 16.8.2 Principal Uses and renumber subsequent subparagraphs; 

 
 

7. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 1st day of June, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

18



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11098 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP15-0005 – 
No. 21 Great Projects Ltd., Inc. No. 355991 

5000 Gordon Drive 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of portions of The South ½, District Lot 579, SDYD, Except Plans 
KAP77336, KAP86178, KAP86917, KAP87090, KAP87918, EPP9619, EPP9638, EPP12863, 
EPP15721, EPP18670 and EPP22118, located on Gordon Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the  
MRC – Multiple Unit Residential – Cluster Housing designation to the S2RESH – 
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside designation as per Map “A” attached to and 
forming part of this bylaw; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 

 
 

19



 
 

20



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11099 
Z15-0019 – No. 21 Great Projects Ltd., Inc. No. 355991  

5000 Gordon Drive 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of portions of The South ½, District Lot 579, SDYD, Except Plans 
KAP77336, KAP86178, KAP86917, KAP87090, KAP87918, EPP9619, EPP9638, EPP12863, 
EPP15721, EPP18670 and EPP22118 located on Gordon Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the 
A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the RU2h – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone as per 
Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

  

21



 

22



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 26,2015 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: LL15-0005 Owner: 
Kelowna Yacht Club         
(Inc. No. S-0003099) 

Address: 1370 Water St. Applicant: 
Cactus Club Café – Randall 
Olafson 

Subject: Liquor License Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Major Park/Open Space (public) 

Existing Zone: P1lp – Major Institutional(Liquor Primary) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council directs staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 

In accordance with Section 18 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
359, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from at address: 1370 Water Street, Kelowna BC, (legally described as Lot 1, 
District Lot 139 & 4083, ODYD, Plan EPP29214) closing at 1am and includes a Restaurant Lounge 
Endorsement and a Patron Non-Participation Entertainment Endorsement, are as follows: 

a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 

 The potential impact for noise is minimal and would be compatible with surrounding land 
 uses. 

b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

 The potential for negative impacts are considered to be minimal. 

c) View of residents: 

 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 

d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 

23



LL15-0005 – Page 2 

 
 

The total person capacity proposed for Food Primary service is 316 seats inside and a 
seasonal patio of 168 patrons, with operating hours of 9:00am to 1:00am for Monday to 
Saturday, and 9:00am to midnight on Sunday. 

e) Traffic and Parking: 

 The parking requirements were addressed through the original Development Permit 
 application and associated Development Variance Permit application which reduced the 
 required off-street parking to 30 stalls.  Therefore, the on-site parking provided is 
 considered compliant.  

f) If the proposed endorsement would result in the establishment being operated in a 
manner which is contrary to its primary purpose:  

The endorsement is being sought to offer an additional level of service to the Food 
Primary establishment. The focus of the proposed facility will be as a Food Primary 
establishment. 

g) Recommendation:  

Council recommends that the application for a Food Primary License to close after 
midnight, a Restaurant Lounge Endorsement, and a patron non-participation 
entertainment Liquor License endorsement be approved. 

2.0 Purpose 

To seek Council’s support for a Food Primary Liquor License with closing after midnight, a 
Restaurant Lounge Endorsement, and a Patron Non-Participation Entertainment Endorsement for 
a new Food Primary establishment to be located on the subject property. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The proposed licensed hours of operation to remain open until 1:00am is also not perceived to 
have negative effects on the surrounding area given the location. 

In consideration of the above, the Urban Planning Department recommends support for the 
proposed license endorsement. Discussion on the LCLB’s regulatory criteria for Local Government 
comment on Liquor License endorsement applications is as contained within Staff’s 
recommendation at the beginning of this report. 

The applicant has canvassed the neighbourhood and had provided input that had been obtained 
during that process 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, all new Food Primary licenses closing after 
midnight require Local Government comment.  Local Government comment is not required for a 
Parton non-Participation Entertainment endorsement and is also not required for a lounge 
endorsement. 

 

 

 

24



LL15-0005 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to develop a Food Primary establishment (known as the Cactus Club 
Cafe) within the southern portion of the new Kelowna Yacht Club building, currently under 
construction.  The Liquor License application indicates that they are proposing to operate beyond 
midnight to close at 1:00am, as well as proposing to add a Patron Non-Participation 
Entertainment Endorsement to their Food Primary license. Only those hours beyond midnight 
require a Council Resolution to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB). In addition to 
this, the applicant is also seeking a Lounge Endorsement for the Food Primary Liquor License. 

The Food Primary establishment is designed with an occupancy load of 148 persons for the 
interior locations, and a maximum occupant load of 168 persons for the exterior patio area 
adjacent to Stuart Park and the lakefront walkway. 

The interior portion of the establishment is also designed to incorporate a designated lounge area 
with a total capacity of 30 patrons. The lounge area is proposed to be split into two areas with 
the interior lounge proposed to have a 22 patron capacity and the patio lounge proposed to have 
an 8 patron capacity. The 30 patrons within the lounge area is included within the 316 person 
occupant load for the establishment. 

The floor space is to be operated as a Food Primary establishment. 

Proposed License Summary: 

Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 

Close midnight 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 1:00am 

        

Licensed Area Capacity 

Food Primary capacity 148 patrons 

Patio capacity 168 patrons 

Total Proposed Person Capacity  316 patrons* 

*The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

4.3 Site Context 

The Cactus Club is currently under construction within the new two storey Kelowna Yacht Club 
building. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P3 – Parks and Open Space boat launch 

East P1 – Major Institutional community theatre 

South P3 – Parks and Open Space parking lot 

West W2 – Intensive water use yacht club docks 

 

 
 

  

25



LL15-0005 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map:  1370 Water Street 
 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application; 

Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments which are 
less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, and Food Primary 
establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment Endorsement) to add a mix of 
entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting potential community impacts via 
license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc). 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 
Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 
 

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
(new location Yacht Club 
& Cactus Club) 

Old Yacht Club Location 

Rose’s Pub 
Kelowna Community Theatre 

26



LL15-0005 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Servicing was addressed through Development Permit application DP12-0008 

6.3 Fire Department 

The Fire department had concerns with an exiting door that was previously approved by 
the plan check and is non existent. The building department has since confirmed that the 
exit door will have to be installed and is not relevant for the purposes of the Liquor 
License. 

6.4 R.C.M.P. 

The RCMP are not opposed to the application for liquor service until 1:00 a.m. within the 
restaurant area. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: April 2, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke,  
Planner 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property map 
Provisional Floor Plan (Occupant Load) 
LCLB application  
 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11068 
Z15-0001 – Shane Jones  
4962 Lakeshore Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 3, Section 26, Township 28, SDYD, Plan 4493, Except Plan 13503, 
located on Lakeshore Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RR2 – Rural Residential 2 zone to 
the RR2c – Rural Residential 2 with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 31st day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 31st day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

39



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 Owner: Shane Jones 

Address: 4962 Lakeshore Road Applicant: 
Sid Molenaar 

Integrity Services Inc. 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR2 – Rural Residential 2 

Proposed Zone: RR2c – Rural Residential 2 with Carriage House 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 11068 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0009 for Lot 3 
Section 26 Township 28 SDYD Plan 4493 Except Plan 13503, located on 4962 Lakeshore Road, 
Kelowna, BC subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building and landscaping to be constructed on the land 
be in general accordance with Schedule ‘A’; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0008, for 
Lot 3 Section 26 Township 28 SDYD Plan 4493 Except Plan 13503, located on 4962 Lakeshore 
Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 9: Specific Use Regulations: 9.5b.1 (c) Carriage House Regulations 

To allow a carriage house to be located between the front yard and the principal dwelling 

Section 9: Specific Use Regulations: 9.5b.11 Carriage House Regulations 

To vary the minimum private open space from 30m² required to 0m² provided 

 

40



DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions of Council’s 
approval of the Development Permit and the Development Variance Permit in order for the 
permits to be issued; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit is valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a form and character Development Permit and Variances for the conversion of an 
existing Accessory Building to a Carriage House. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The existing accessory building was constructed in 2009. The building was constructed with two 
storeys, which works with the sloped topography of the parcel. The lower level provides parking 
for three vehicles with side entry doors from the north, and the upper level single car garage 
allows for tandem parking for two vehicles.  

The parcel will provide abundant parking to meet the Bylaw requirements for both the existing 
dwelling and the carriage house. The lower level of the garage provides 3 stalls within the garage 
for the principal dwelling. Parking for the carriage house is provided with two stalls located on 
the east side of the building.  

The new home owners are applying to convert the existing accessory building to a carriage house. 
The structure will retain the same siting and exterior finish with the only change being to the 
upper level single car garage door which will be replaced by windows. The initial plans also 
included a larger balcony to replace the existing Juliette balcony located on the west side of the 

building in order to fulfil the requirement for 30m² private open space. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 regarding public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by contacting each in person and providing proposal application packages. 
The owners of the property to the south of the subject parcel raised concerns with regards to 
overlooking and lack of privacy from the proposed new balcony.  

At the March 31, 2015 Public Meeting, Council passed 2nd and 3rd reading for the rezoning but 
directed Staff to report back prior to final adoption of Bylaw No. 11068 (Z15-0001). Council’s 
concern related to the privacy issue brought forward by the adjacent neighbor at the Public 
Meeting in regards to the balcony location. 

To address this concern, the plans have been amended to removed the proposed larger balcony. 
The existing Juliette balcony will remain as originally constructed. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Building permit (BP38559) was issued in 2009 to allow the construction of the accessory building.  
DVP12-0139 granted a height variance from 4.5m to 5.1m to allow the building to be two storeys. 
The variance was granted due to the overall height of the accessory building being measured 
from the lower level of the garage. To be consistant, the building height measurement should be 
applied in the same way as it is to walkout basements for single family dwellings. The building 
height is measuered from the front yard and not from the lowest floor or walkout basement 
level. As such, the height of the carriage house from the main level to the mid-point of the roof 
is 3.39m (1.41m below the 4.8m maximum height of a carriage house). 

41



DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The accessory building is located 37.7m from the front property line. This complies with the 
Zoning Bylaw requirement that the accessory building be a minimum of 18m from the front 
property line. The Zoning requirements for a carriage house vary from those for an accessory 
building. A variance is required to allow the carriage house to be situated between the principal 
dwelling and the front property line. The house is located in the middle of the parcel, just over 
67m from the front property line. 

In order to meet Council’s directive from the March 31st, 2015 Council meeting, the applicant 
amended the proposed plans by removing the balcony located on the west side of the carriage 
house. The removal of the proposed balcony eliminates any overlooking concerns that could 
occur to the neighbouring property located to the south. The amended plans were emailed to the 
south adjacent homeowners on April 8, 2015. Staff have followed up by speaking with the 
homeowner and emailing the homeowner on April 22, 2015 with no response to date. The lack of 
response seems to indicate no further concerns. In order to accommodate Council’s directive, a 

variance in needed to vary the 30m² private open space required to 0m² private open space 
provided. 

As this parcel is not serviced by the City of Kelowna for water or sewer, a Septic Practitioner’s 
report has been provided to ensure the increased service capacity requirements will be met. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Lakeshore Road in the Southwest Mission area 
of Kelowna. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

Northeast RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Single Family Dwelling 

Southeast A1 – Agriculture 1 Farm Use 

Southwest RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Single Family Dwelling 

Northwest W1 – Recreational Water Use Okanagan Lake 

 

Subject Property Photos: 4962 Lakeshore Road 
East Elevation (facing Lakeshore Rd)   North Elevation 

 

Subject Property Map: 4962 Lakeshore Road 

42



DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 – Page 4 

 
 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RR2c ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 4,000m2 3,062m2  * 

Lot Width 36m 27m * 

Lot Depth 30m 135.28m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage 20% 11.1% 

Site coverage: accessory 
buildings or structures and 

carriage house  
14% 3.7% 

Floor Area of carriage house 90m² 84.8m² 
Maximum net floor area to total 

net floor area of principal 
building 

75% 47.59% 

Setback from Principal Dwelling 3.0m 13.35m 

Carriage House Regulations 
Height (to roof mid-point) 4.8m 3.39m 

Front Yard 6.0m 37.72m 

Side Yard (southwest) 2.0m 2.03m 

Side Yard (northeast) 2.0m 18.65m 

Height (carriage house shall not 
be higher than existing primary 

dwelling unit) 
5.13m ex. house roof peak 4.02m carriage house roof peak 

43



DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 – Page 5 

 
 

Carriage House Location 
Principal dwelling to be 

located between property line 
& carriage house 

Variance required  

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 3 stalls 6 stalls 

Private Open Space 30m2 min. 0m2
 

 Indicates a requested variance to allow the carriage house to be located between the primary dwelling and the front property 

line. 

 Indicates a requested variance to Private Open Space as per Council’s directive. 

*Existing non-conforming lot area and lot width. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

2) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum dated February 10, 2015. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  January 12, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: January 24, 2015 
Date of Amended Plans Received by City April 8, 2015 
     and Circulated to affected neighbour  
  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

44



DP15-0009 & DVP15-0008 – Page 6 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan – Schedule ‘A’ 
Floor Plans – Schedule ‘A’ 
Elevations – Schedule ‘B’ 
Landscape Plan - Schedule ‘A’ 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Email from Applicant and Staff to adjacent owner 
 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10782 
Z11-0083 – Arnold and Melitta Frank  

1429 KLO Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 52, District Lot 131, ODYD, Plan 186, Except Plan KAP78326 
located on KLO Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the RM7 – 
Mobile Home Park zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 19th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 11th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 11th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

58



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Owner: Jamac Holdings Ltd  

Address: 1429 KLO Road Applicant: Arnold & Melitta Frank 

Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: RM7 - Mobile Home Park 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10782 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0258 for Lot 52 
District Lot 131 ODYD Plan 186 Except Plan KAP78326 located on 1429 KLO Road, Kelowna, BC 
subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the buildings to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. The landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to the issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development 
Engineering Branch must be satisfied; 

5. Prior to the issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Zoning application 
(Z11-0083) must be satisfied, 

6. Prior to the issuance of the Building Permit, a Section 219 covenant restricting the form of 
dwellings to ‘modular’ units meeting the CSA A-277 standard must be registered on title; 

7. Prior to the issuance of the Building Permit, a Section 219 ALR Buffering restrictive 
covenant must be registered on title; 

59



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 2 

 
 

8. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a  “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as estimated by a professional landscaper; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0259 
for Lot 52 District Lot 131 ODYD Plan 186 Except Plan KAP78326, located on 1429 KLO Road, 
Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 7.6.1 (e): Minimum Landscape Buffers 

 To vary the minimum landscape buffer for parcels abutting ALR from 3.0m to 0.0m; 

Section 13.13.7(e): Mobile Home Park - Other Regulations 

 To vary the minimum private open space from 5% of the site to 4.89%; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Mobile Home Parks Bylaw No. 5453-83 be 
granted: 

Section 4.05 (1) Buffer Areas  

To vary the landscape buffer from a roadway to a mobile home space from 7.6m to 6.0m; 
and the landscape buffer from the side boundaries to a mobile home space from 4.6m to 
0.0m. 

Section 4.06 (1): Setbacks 

To vary the minimum setback between mobile homes from 3.0m to 2.1m; 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions of 
Council’s Approval of the Development Permit and Development Permit Applications in order 
for the permit to be issued; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit is valid for 
two (2) years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider: 
a)  Development Permit application for the form and character of a modular home park on the 
subject property. 
b) Development Variance Permit to vary the rear landscape buffer area abutting ALR, to vary the 
landscape buffers to a mobile home space, the amount of required private open space and the 
minimum setback between mobile homes. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning staff supports the requested variances to both Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 and the 
Mobile Home Parks Bylaw 5453-83 to allow the development of a new 88 unit modular home park. 
This application is consistant with the future land use of the Official Community Plan to 
encourage increased density in an urban neighbourhood. 

Parcels which are abutting ALR land require a 3.0m buffer in addition to the required 6.0m 
setback from the rear property line. The proposal provides the required 6.0m rear setback from 
Bothe Rd, but does not provide the additional 3.0m buffer area. The variance is supportable 
through the provision of Level 5 landscape buffering provided within the south setback area. This 

60



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 3 

 
 

is the highest landscaping requirement within the Zoning Bylaw as it requires screening to a 
height of 1.8m in the form of vegetation or a decorative wall or fence, 1 tree placed every 10m 
along the length of the setback area and high density planting beds between tree locations. 

The second variance is to reduce the amount of private open space from 5% to 4.89%. The parcel 

size is 4.87 ha and requires 2435m² of private open space. The modular home park provides three 

separate open space areas throughout the parcel totaling 2381m², which is 150m² less than 
required. The shortage of common private open space is made up for in the outdoor area of the 

individual mobile home spaces. The minimum mobile home space requirement is 325m² and the 

smallest space proposed is 354m², therefore providing at least 29m² of additional area per unit. 

The third variance is for the Mobile Home Park buffer areas. This development is unique as two 
sets of rules apply, the Zoning Bylaw and the Mobile Home Park Bylaw. The proposed 
development meets the building setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaw, which requires front 
and rear setbacks of 6.0m. The Mobile Home Park Bylaw requires a larger setback of 7.5m when 
adjacent to roadways. This is a supportable variance as the parcel meets the Zoning Bylaw 
requirement. Abundant screening is provided along KLO road in the form of a 1.82m high fence 
with landsaping along the length. The fence will also provide sound buffering for the 
development. 

The Mobile Home Park Bylaw requires a 4.6m landscape buffer from the side property line to the 
edge of a mobile home space. The proposal provides a 4.5m setback from the side property line 
to the dwelling and meets the Zoning Bylaw requirement. This variance is minimal and will not 
affect the overall development. 

The final variance is to reduce the distance between mobile homes. The Mobile Home Park Bylaw 
requires a minimum of 1.5m from the building to the side property line. This distance is 
maintained from the dwelling to the side property line. The garage portion projects 0.90m into 
this area. In the instances where this does occur, the building code requirements increase to 
ensure life safety requirements are provided. This is accomplished through the use of fire 
resistant material, non-combustible siding and no windows allowed within these areas. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing a new 88 unit modular home park on a parcel which currently has an 
existing single family dwelling and associated accessory buildings. These will remain on site and 
be occupied by the owners. The development will be completed in five phases with the first 
being the most northeast portion of the parcel directly accessed from KLO Road. The second 
phase is the northwest portion of the parcel and the remaining phases following the perimeter of 
the parcel clockwise. 

Primary access from KLO Road is at the eastern corner of the parcel. In the long term the Bothe 
Road extension will provide access to the site from the southeast corner of the parcel. The parcel 
provides a 24m road dedication to the City that facilitates the road design for Bothe Road and 
will substantially reduce any impact on Fascieux Creek, which is located directly south of the 
subject parcel. The project also provides an additional 4.0m road reserve setback above and 
beyond the road dedication for the future construction of Bothe Road. 

The proposed 88 modular units will provide a form of housing that is more attainable in terms of 
price and is accessible for a variety of age groups and family types from senior citizens to young 
families wanting to own their first home. The modular homes will look like more traditional  

61



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 4 

 
 

single storey detached homes. Once complete, the development will have the look and feel that 
resembles a bareland strata development rather than a typical mobile home park. 

Each modular unit has a double car garage and associated driveway. Visitor parking on the site is 
located south of the existing dwelling and along the roadway, adjacent to the large common area 
on the west side of the parcel.  The driveways of each unit also provides additional parking space 
for visitors.  

Private amenity areas are provided for each unit in the form of a front patio area as well as a 
rear yard. The project provides three common green space areas for resident use. Eventually, the 
existing dwelling on the parcel will become a common amenity building and recreation area for 
the use of all residents. 

4.2 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
P1 – Major Institutional, P2 – Education and 
Minor Institutional 

Library, RDCO, Private Club 

East RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Family Single Family Dwelling 

South P2 – Education and Minor Institutional Religious Assembly 

West 
P4 – Utilities, P2 – Education and Minor 
Institutional 

City of Kelowna – Parks, Religious 
Assembly 

 

Subject Property Map: 1429 KLO Road 
 

 
  

62



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 5 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM7 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 2.0 ha 4.87 ha 

Lot Width 50.0m 144 m 

Lot Depth 50.0m 358 m 

Development Regulations 
Density (max.) 20 dwellings / ha (97 max) 18.3 dwellings / ha (89 proposed) 

Height 7.6m or 1 storey 4.73 m 

Front Yard 6.0m 6.0 m 

Side Yard (east) 4.5m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 4.5 m 4.5 m  

Rear Yard 6.0m 6.0 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 stalls / dwelling 2 stalls / dwelling + driveways 

Visitor Parking Stalls 1 stall / 7 dwellings 13 visitor stalls 

Private Open Space 5%  (2435 m2) 4.49% (2381m2)provided 

Landscape Buffer 
(where abutting ALR land) 

3.0m required 
0.0 provided 

(will provide level 5 landscaping) 

CRITERIA Mobile Home Park Bylaw PROPOSAL 

Landscape Buffer 

7.5m req. from a roadway to a 
mobile home space 

6.0m from the north and south 
property lines to the Modular 

Home  

4.6m from a side property line 
to a mobile home space 

4.5m from the side property line 
to the Modular Home  

Mobile Home Unit Separation 3.0m min. 2.4m provided  

 Indicates a requested variance to the private open space provided. 

 Indicates a requested variance to the minimum landscape buffer for land abutting ALR land where non-farm uses exist. 

 Indicates a requested variance to the buffer area from a mobile home to the property line (front and rear to a roadway & sides). 

 Indicates a requested variance to the amount of separation between mobile home units. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Complete Communities. 2  Support the Development of complete communities with a minimum 
intensity of approximately 35 – 40 people and/or jobs per hectare to support basic transit service 
– a bus every 30 minutes. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.4 (Development Process Chapter). 

63



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 6 

 
 

Permanent Growth Boundary.3  Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. Support development of property outside the Permanent Growth Boundary for more 
intensive uses only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land Use designations in place 
as of initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except as per Council’s specific amendment of this 
policy. Resource Protection Area designated properties not in the ALR and outside the Permanent 
Growth Boundary will not be supported for subdivision below parcel sizes of 4.0 ha (10 acres). 
The Permanent Growth Boundary may be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 

New Residential Developments. 4 Ensure that new residential developments and subdivisions 
have active transportation links to the nearest arterial or major collector roads at developer 
cost. 

Natural Ecosystem Management. 5 Ensure the protection of biodiversity, the conservation of 
critical habitats and the sustainable use of biological resources through the incorporation of an 
integrated ecosystem management approach and the use of best available knowledge. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment 

1) The request for a 6.0 metre buffer at the south property line adjacent the ALR does not 
comply with Section 7.6.1 (e) of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, that requires an additional 
3.0 metres of buffer area be added to the required setback of a zone where the property 
abuts ALR land.  

Therefore, under the current proposed plan, an additional variance requesting the 
relaxation of the 3.0 m setback in addition to the standard setback, along the south 
property line is required. This variance is supportable on the condition that a landscape 
plan that complies with the Level 5 Landscape Buffer (Diagram 7.6) of the Zoning Bylaw 
(attached). 

2) A No-Build / No Disturb / Properties adjacent the ALR Restrictive Covenant should be 
placed on the property and provided to the mobile home renters / owners, to alert them 
of potential neighbourhood impacts of being adjacent farming operations, and prevent 
them from planting plants that could be of detriment to agriculture. This is in accordance 
with Ministry of Agriculture and Lands: Guide to Edge Planning (2009) standards. An 
example covenant is attached. 

6.2 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

2) Structural Engineering is required for connection of a modular home to a stick framed 
garage or decks for each unit since they are built to different standards. 

3) There appears to be spatial separation issues between units if the side yard variance is 
accepted. This may require reduced windows, non combustible siding and soffit 
protection which is not standard to modular construction.  

4) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

                                                
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 7.8.3 (Infrastructure Chapter). 
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 7.8.3 (Environment Chapter). 

64



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 7 

 
 

6.3 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum dated January 14, 2015 and October 30, 2012 (rev 3) 

6.4 Fire Department 

1) Construction fire safety plan is required to be submitted and reviewed prior to 
construction and updated as required. Section 5.9 of the Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 
10760 pertaining to Construction Sites shall be included.  

2) Engineered Fire Flow calculations are required to determine Fire Hydrant 
requirements as per the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900.  

3) A visible address must be posted on KLO as per City of Kelowna Bylaw  

4) Fire Department access is to be met as per BCBC 3.2.5.6, from KLO to the subdivision - 
6 M minimum width and appropriate turning radius   

5) All requirements of the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall be met   

6.5 Parks & Public Places 

1) Boulevard street trees and associated irrigation system to be provided and installed by 
developer and to match spacing and species that has already been established in front of 
1359 KLO Road (the Parks Yard), i.e., Armstrong Maple, Acer freemanii X Armstrong.  
Location of boulevard trees should take into consideration appropriate setbacks from 
existing street lights. 

2) A fencing plan needs to be submitted that includes locations of and details for all types of 
proposed fencing, i.e., height, materials and setback from property lines for "solid screen 
fence" and "metal rail fence". 

3) Rock mulch is not permitted as a boulevard treatment adjacent to a public sidewalk 
(Bylaw 10425 Section 4g) as issues are created regarding rocks migrating onto the 
sidewalk. 

4) Robinia psuedoacacia “Purple Robe” is proposed for the development's open space area.  
The City's experience with this tree species has been unfavourable  as wind events cause a 
high number of broken limbs. 

5) Iplan - Parks and Public spaces does not encourage public access to the Parks Yard and 
therefore does not support construction of a walkway through the tot lot terminating at 
the common property line. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  December 22, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: February 26, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 

65



DP14-0258, DVP14-0259 Page 8 

 
 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 

Site Plan – Schedule ‘A’ 
Floor Plans – Schedule ‘A’ 
Conceptual Elevations – Schedule ‘B’ 
Landscape Plans – Schedule ‘C’ 
Fence Detail Drawing – Schedule ‘C’ 
Phasing Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Summary of Technical Comments 
Development Permit/Development Variance Permit No. DP15-0258 DVP14-0259 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: HAP15-0003 Owner: City of Kelowna 

Address: 283 Lake Avenue Applicant: Hundal Legacy Homes Ltd. 

Subject: Heritage Alteration Permit Application 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP15-0003 for Lot 1, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan EPP37093, located on 283 Lake Avenue, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted, as shown on 
Schedule “A” attached: 

Section 13.1.6(d): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum side yard from 2.3 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed. 

Section 13.1.6(d): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum flanking street side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Heritage Alteration Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Heritage Alteration Permit for the form and character and proposed variances of a 
single detached house and accessory building. 

 

97



HAP15-0003 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff supports the proposed Heritage Alteration Permit to construct a single detached house and 
accessory building on the subject property. The property is within the Abbott Heritage 
Conservation Area and a dwelling has never been built on the property.  

Form & Character 

The identified building style for the property and the dominant style for the block is Late 
Vernacular Cottage from the Third Civic Phase. This style is characterized by: flush gable verges, 
stucco or horizontal siding, up to two storey massing, clustered vertical window sashes, 
asymmetrical façade design, flush front entrance, minor decorative detailing, gable roof forms, 
wood or interlocking asphalt shingle, and side or rear yard parking.  

The proposed house is consistent with many of the design characteristics of the Late Vernacular 
Style, featuring horizontal siding on the first storey, two storey massing, vertical window design, 
an asymmetrical façade, gable roof forms, asphalt shingles and parking off the lane. The design 
also meets most of the applicable Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines in the Official 
Community Plan, with the main exception being consistency with the established streetscape 
massing. Most of the existing houses in the area have one or one and one-half storey massing and 
various architectural styles are represented. Given the limited buildable footprint on the subject 
property, the inclusion of a second storey is an appropriate means of building a dwelling with 
adequate living space. 

        Proposed East Elevation (Front)   Proposed North Elevation (Side) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Side Yard Variances 

The property is legal non-conforming since it is both smaller than the minimum lot area and 
narrower than the minimum lot width permitted in the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone, as follows: 

Subdivision Regulation Permitted Actual 
Minimum Lot Area 550 m2 534 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 17.0 m 15.2 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 35.7 m 

 

There is a 5.0 m wide road reserve along the north portion of the property for a future active 
transportation corridor along Lake Avenue, reducing the lot area to 357 m2 and the lot width to 
10.2 m. The map below shows the existing property and road reserve dimensions. 

 

 

98



HAP15-0003 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property and Road Reserve 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the minimum south side yard from 2.3 m permitted to 
1.5 m proposed. In addition, to avoid future non-conformity once the road reserve is required, 
the applicant is requesting a variance to the minimum north side yard (flanking street) from     
4.5 m permitted to 2.5 m proposed, as measured from the road reserve line. Staff supports the 
proposed setbacks, which allow a buildable width of 6.2 m. 

Site Plan and Side Yard Variances 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property is located in the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area and has been 
owned by the City of Kelowna since 1994. A 5.0 m wide road reserve has been registered along 
the north portion of the property to accommodate a future active transportation corridor along 
Lake Avenue; the remainder of the property is available for development. The prospective buyer 
has submitted this Heritage Alteration Permit application to construct a single detached house 
and accessory building on the property. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Lake Avenue and 
Water Street in the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area. The property is designated S2RES – 
Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary. The surrounding area is predominantly single family residential with an apartment 
building to the east. 

35.7 m 

15.2 m 

5.0 m 

Subject Property 

Road Reserve 

Lake Avenue 

W
a
te

r 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
 

Lake Avenue 
W

a
te

r 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
 

Road reserve 

Detached    

garage Single detached house 

Request to vary the minimum north 

side yard (flanking street) from 4.5 m 

permitted to 2.5 m proposed. 

Request to vary the minimum south 

side yard from 2.3 m permitted to   

1.5 m proposed. 

99



HAP15-0003 – Page 4 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

East RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Multiple dwelling housing 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

 

Subject Property Map: 283 Lake Avenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100



HAP15-0003 – Page 5 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 550 m2 534 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 17.0 m 15.2 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 35.7 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Site Coverage 

(buildings) 
40% 23.7% 

Maximum Site Coverage 
(buildings, driveways & parking) 

50% 29.7% 

Maximum Height 
9.5 m / 2 ½ storeys 

4.5 m (accessory building) 
6.5 m / 2 storeys 

4.1 m (accessory building) 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m 4.7 m 

Minimum Side Yard (south) 2.3 m 1.5 m  

Minimum Side Yard (north) 4.5 m (flanking street) 2.5 m  

Minimum Rear Yard 
7.5 m 

1.5 m (accessory building) 
15.7 m 

1.6 m (accessory building) 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 stalls Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum south side yard from 2.3 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum north side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 2.5 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines3 

Site Layout and Parking: Maintain established front yard setbacks; locate new driveways and 
garages in the rear; retain established spacing between buildings. 

Building Massing (Envelope): Maintain established streetscape massing. 

Architectural Pattern: Consider established building spacing, foundation height, proportions, 
opening ratios and setbacks of adjacent development. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 16 (Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines Chapter). 

101



HAP15-0003 – Page 6 

 
 

Roof Forms, Dormers & Chimneys: Maintain consistent neighbourhood roof pattern, complexity, 
silhouette and use of secondary elements; use high quality, low maintenance roofing materials of 
similar design to traditional materials; use overhang, eaves and chimney details consistent with 
the building’s architectural style; use consistent roof slopes for secondary roof elements. 

Cladding Materials: Use low maintenance materials of similar design to traditional materials; use 
exterior paint or material colours of similar traditional tones to building’s architectural style. 

Doors & Windows: Maintain established pattern of window and door to wall area ratio, 
placement and style; create prominent and visible entrances; use door and window design and 
materials consistent with the established architectural style. 

Landscaping, Walks & Fences: Protect healthy, mature trees; consider landscaping design 
similar to adjacent properties; limit front yard fences and landscaped screening to no more than 
1.0 m in height. 

Privacy & Shadowing Guidelines: Provide sightlines to the front yard and building from the 
street; minimize shadowing on adjacent private open space. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated April 1, 2015. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 24, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: May 4, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP15-0003 
Schedule A: Site Plan and Floor Plans 
Schedule B: Elevations and Colour Board 

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/25/2015 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (AC) 

Application: DVP15-0093 Owner: David Wood 

Address: 228 Caliburn Court Applicant: 
Urban Options Planning & 
Permits 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-00693 for the 
property legally known as Lot B, Section 6, Township 23, ODYD, Plan 50505, located on 228 
Caliburn Court, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT the variance to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted in 
accordance with the drawings attached to the Development Variance Permit described in 
Schedule “A”: 

Section 13.1.6 (b) – Development Regulations 

To vary the height of an accessory building from 4.5 metres to 5.87 metres.  

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Variance Permit to permit additional height for a portion of a 
proposed accessory building. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Staff supports the proposed variance. The City of Kelowna's Zoning Bylaw defines height as the 
maximum vertical distance between building grade and the highest point of the structure of a 
non-sloping roof, or the mid-point of a sloping roof. The maximum height permitted for an 
accessory building is 4.5 metres. Since the pool deck is cantilevered, approximately 1/3 of the 
proposed accessory building is over height when measured from the natural grade. The additional 

113



DP15-00093 – Page 2 

 
height is from the pool deck to the natural 
grade. To proceed with the proposal the 
applicant is seeking a variance to the 
accessory building height from 4.Sm 
permitted to 5.87m proposed. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 
respecting public consultation, the applicant 
undertook neighbour consultation by 
individually contacting the neighbours as 
described in the attached Schedule ‘A’. No 
major issues were identified during 
consultation with neighbouring parcels. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The project proposes to add a covered 
shelter to the pool deck. The pool deck is cantilevered over a sloping portion of the property. 
The shelter will function to give shade, provide winter storage of garden furniture and reduce 
noise transfer to neighbouring properties. The proposed shelter/accessory building will be 3.35m 
(11 ft.) high when measured from the existing pool deck and 51m2 (548 sq. ft.) in size. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in Magic Estates and is designated as S2RES – Single Two Unit 
Residential. Knox Mountain Park (zoned P3 – Parks and Open Space) is located to the north and 
west. The surrounding single family neighbourhood is zoned RU1. 
 

Subject Property Map: 228 Caliburn Court 
 

  

      Proposed accessory building 
      Approximate portion of building over height 
 

114



DP15-00093 – Page 3 

 
5.0 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 

Maximum Height 4.5 m 

4.5m (for the majority of the 
proposed building) 

5.87 m for a 3 m portion of the 
buildinq 

 Minimum Front Yard 12.0 m >12.0 m 

Minimum Side Yard 2.0 m 2.0 m 

Minimum Rear Yard 1.5 m >21 m 

Maximum Site coverage of 
buildings  

40 % 16 % 

Maximum Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
50 % 23 % 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
2 parking stalls 3 parking stalls 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce  the side yard setback requirement. 

6.0 Current Development Policies  

6.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

7.0 Technical Comments  

7.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Structural Engineering required for connection of signs to building at time of building 
permit application. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

7.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

115



DP15-00093 – Page 4 

 
 

8.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  April 23, 2015 
Date Public Consultation Received:  April 23, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memo 
Neighbourhood Consultation 
DVP15-0093 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DP15-0090 & DVP15-0091 Owner: Kelsey Fleming  

Address: 840 Coronation Avenue Applicant: Kelsey Fleming 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0090 for Lot 33 District 
Lot 138 ODYD Plan 1277, located at 840 Coronation Avenue, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0091 for 
Lot 33 District Lot 138 ODYD Plan 1277, located at 840 Coronation Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.6.6(d): Two Dwelling Housing – Development Regulations 

Vary the minimum required side yard setback (west) from 2.3 m required to 1.3 m 
proposed.  

AND THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be considered subsequent 
to the requirements of the Development Engineering Department being completed to their 
satisfaction.  

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval with no opportunity to extend. 

  

128



DP15-0090 & DP15-0091 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit Application for an addition to a single family dwelling and a 
Development Variance Permit to vary a side yard setback.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed variance on the subject property. The applicant is seeking 
a variance to legalize the non-conforming siting of the current dwelling in order to add a second 
storey to the existing dwelling footprint. The existing single storey dwelling currently sits 1.3 m 
from the west property line. This development variance permit application will allow the 
proposed second storey to also be 1.3 m from the west property line.  

Residential lots on the subject property block have widths measuring 12.2 m, and areas varying 
from 450 m2 to 518 m2. The narrow lots on this block are zoned RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing, 
however they are not large enough to develop duplex housing. The trend in this area is to 
renovate the existing single family dwellings to increase the existing footprint of the dwelling 
and on some properties renovations include the addition of a half or second storey. Carriage 
homes are also being developed on this block. Staff support the variance for a second storey to 
be 1.3 m from one side property line as the existing single family home has a small footprint on 
the site and the visual impact of a two storey dwelling is minimized by proposing a design that 
mimics the style of a dormer on each side of a gable roof.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The existing one storey home, built in the 1930s, is in Kelowna’s Central Character 
Neighbourhood. The residence currently encroaches into the 2.0 m minimum side yard setback 
for a single storey dwelling as regulated in Zoning Bylaw No. 8000. The side yard setback for a 
second storey is 2.3 m. 

The proposed addition includes an office, furnace room, bedroom and a bathroom. The proposed 
renovation will not increase the first storey footprint but increase the non conforming siting as 
the west and east exterior walls will continue in height to become second storey walls. The visual 
impact of a second storey within a side yard setback is minimized as exterior walls on both the 
west and east side are limited in height and length to that of a dormer style.   

 

A window facing the street is designed on the upper storey along with a small balcony on the 
north side of the dwelling, looking into the rear yard. The proposed design includes a new roof 

Extent of proposed second 

storey exterior wall along west 

property line 

Front porch 

129



DP15-0090 & DP15-0091 – Page 3 

 
 

and hardiplank siding, the existing exterior not affected by the addition will remain in its current 
condition. Overall the proposed design fits well with neighbouring properties on the block as the 
footprint of the dwelling and exterior colours will remain the same.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Coronation Avenue between Richter Street 
and Ethel Street in the Central Character neighbourhood of Kelowna. The property is zoned RU6, 
identified in Kelowna’s OCP as MRM, and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Neighbouring 
properties on the subject property block are in different stages of renovations such as expanding 
the first storey footprint and additions of half and second storeys to the existing single family 
dwellings.  

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 Single Family Dwelling 

East RU6 Single Family Dwelling 

South RU6 Single Family Dwelling 

West RU6 Single Family Dwelling 

 

 

Subject Property Map: 840 Coronation Avenue  

 
  

Coronation Ave 

Cawston Ave 

E
th

e
l 
S
t 

R
ic

h
te

r 
St

 

130



DP15-0090 & DP15-0091 – Page 4 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 400 m2  458 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 13.0 m 12.2 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 18.0 m 37.6 m 

Development Regulations 

Maximum Site Coverage 40% 151 m2 - 33% 

Maximum Site Coverage 
including driveways and 
parking areas 

50% 165 m2 - 36% 

Maximum Height 9.5 m or 2 ½ storeys 6.9  m – 2 storeys 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m 
(existing 4.2 m) proposed 

addition begins 6.3 m from 
front property line 

Minimum Side Yard (west) 2.0 m for 1 storey portion of dwelling 1.3 m  

Minimum Side Yard (east) 2.0 m for 1 storey portion of dwelling 3.3 m 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m 
 Detached garage 2.3 m 

Dwelling 18.0 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 
Requirements 

2 stalls  2 stalls 

 Indicates a requested variance to Side Yard Setback (west)  

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter) 

131



DP15-0090 & DP15-0091 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering 

 See attached Memorandum dated May 5, 2015 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. A visible 
address is required from Coronation Avenue. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  April 22, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: April 29, 2015  
 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” Site Plan 
Schedule “B” Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No. 
Development Variance Permit No. 

DP15-0090  
DVP15-0091 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PURPOSE: 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT 
PURPOSE: 
 
PERMIT PREPARED BY: 

 
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing  

Central Character Neighbourhood 

To consider the form and character of a single family dwelling addition.  

To vary the minimum required side yard setback.  

  

Tracey Yuzik 

 

 
ISSUED TO:                                                      Kelsey Fleming 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:  1840 Coronation Avenue 
 

 

 LOT BLOCK D.L. DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION
: 

33   138 ODYD 1277 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control 
Bylaw unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions 
shall be granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not 
have been identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
a) THAT the dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule “A”; 
 

b) AND THAT the exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 

c) AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

141



- 2 - 
  DP15-0090 & DVP15-0091 
 

Section 13.6.6(d): Two Dwelling Housing – Development Regulations 

Vary the minimum required side yard setback (west) from 2.3 m required to 1.3 m proposed. 

 

d) AND THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Department being completed to their satisfaction. 

 
e) AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of Council 

approval, with no opportunity to extend; 
 

3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
 

4. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of N/A 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of N/A      
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 

 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 

142



- 3 - 
  DP15-0090 & DVP15-0091 
 

part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Manager of Urban 
Planning. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 

  ___________DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE 

 ____________ DAY OF _______________, 2015 BY THE MANAGER OF URBAN PLANNING. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Ryan Smith,  

Urban Planning Manager  

143



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 Owner: George Wannop 

Address: 1441 McInnes Avenue Applicant: George Wannop 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0072 for Lot B District Lot 
137 ODYD Plan 23706, located at 1441 McInnes Avenue, Kelowna, BC subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building and landscaping to be constructed on the land 
be in general accordance with Schedule ‘A’; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0073, for 
Lot B District Lot 137 ODYD Plan 23706, located at 1441 McInnes Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.6.5 (b) RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Subdivision Requirements 

Vary the minimum required lot width for a site with semi-detached or duplex housing for 
a corner lot from 20.0 m required to 19.2 m proposed.  

AND THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be considered subsequent 
to the requirements of the Development Engineering Department being completed to their 
satisfaction.  

AND THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be considered subject to 
the property owner being responsible for all legal fees and charges resulting from the Statutory 
Right of Way associated with this application.  

AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions of Council’s 
approval of the Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Applications in order for 
the permits to be issued. 

144



DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 – Page 2 

 
 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit is valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval with no opportunity to extend.  

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary lot width for semi-detached housing. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed variance on the subject property. The applicant is seeking 
the variance to legalize the non compliant existing width of the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing lot. 
The subject property is currently zoned RU6, which allows for duplex, semi-detached, or two 
single detached housing only on lots that meet duplex lot size requirements.  These minimum 
size requirements for a corner lot are: 

    Minimum Required  Subject Property 

 Width of  20.0 m    19.2 m 

 Depth of  30.0 m    48.5 m  

 Area of  800m2     893 m3  

The Local Government Act states that density on a site cannot be varied from a Bylaw. Even 
though Staff are recommending a variance to the lot width on the subject property, the density 
of development is not increasing. The applicant is proposing to develop semi-detached housing on 
a parcel that exceeds 800m2; therefore the two dwellings on the subject property are not 
increasing the density of the RU6 zone. Urban Planning Staff support the variance as 19.2 m is an 
acceptable lot width for this subject property that exceeds the lot depth and area.   

Kelowna’s Official Community Plan designates this property as Single/Two Unit Residential. The 
design put forth by the applicant does not trigger any additional variances and is a 
complimentary style to the existing dwelling and neighbouring properties.  

Ritchie Brook is a drainage corridor that runs along the north end of the subject property. This 
brook is confined in a concrete drainage channel that flows from the east side of the property to 
the west neighbouring residential properties, eventually emptying into Mill Creek. The applicant 
does not wish to develop in or around this area and has agreed to register a statutory right of 
way over the brook which will begin at the north property line, extending 3.0m south of the 
concrete channel. This right of way is necessary for the City to maintain the drainage corridor.  

Ritchie Brook Drainage Map:  

Mill Creek 

Ritchie Brook 
Subject 
Property 

stormwater 
outflow 
location 

145



DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 – Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description  

The subject property currently contains a 1960s single family dwelling. The applicant has 
renovated the existing dwelling and is seeking to construct a second dwelling, creating a semi-
detached dwelling on the property. The proposed two storey second dwelling footprint will be 
approximately one and a half times larger than the existing single family dwelling on site. This 
size difference is due to the existing dwelling footprint of 84 m2.  

Currently the driveway to the subject property comes off of McInnes Avenue. Vehicle access will 
remain in this location for the existing dwelling, and a second vehicle access for the proposed 
dwelling will come off of Inkar Road. Both of these driveways are more than 7.5 m from the 
intersection of McInnes Avenue and Inkar Road.  

The proposed dwelling will be constructed in the rear of the property, on the south side of the 
existing dwelling. Private open space is provided for each dwelling on opposite ends of the 
property. A roof with a similar pitch to the existing dwelling is proposed for the new dwelling.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the southwest corner of McInnes Avenue and Inkar Road in the 
Capri Landmark Revitalization Development Permit area. The property is zoned RU6, identified in 
Kelowna’s OCP as S2RES, and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary.  

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Dwelling 

East 
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing w/ Land Use 
Contract 

Apartment Complex 

South RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Duplex Dwelling 

West RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Dwelling 
 

Subject Property Map: 1441 McInnes Avenue 
 

  

Springfield Road 

B
u
rt

c
h
 A

v
e
 

146



DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 – Page 4 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

FOR  SEMI-DETACHED  
PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

 Minimum Lot Area 800 m2 893 m2 

 Minimum Lot Width 20 m   19.2 m  

Minimum Lot Depth 30 m 48.5 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Site Coverage 40% 320 m2 - 36% 

Maximum Site Coverage including 
driveways and parking areas 

50%  435 m2 - 49% 

 Maximum Height 9.5 m or 2 ½ storeys 6.7 m - 2 storeys 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m 13.5 m 

Minimum Side Yard (west) 
2.0 m for up to 1 ½ storey 

portion of dwelling 
2.7 m 

Minimum Side Yard (east, flanking 
street) 

4.5 m to a house, 6.0 m to a 
garage 

 4.5 m house, 6.5 m garage 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m 7.8 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 4 stalls 5 stalls 

Private Open Space 30 m2 per dwelling +40 m2 per dwelling 

 Indicates a requested variance to Lot Width  

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter) 

147



DP15-0072 & DVP15-0073 – Page 5 

 
 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached Memorandum dated May 1, 2015 

6.3 Real Estate &  Building Services 

 A Statutory Right of Way is required to be registered from the north property line of the 
subject property to 3.0 m south of the existing concrete drainage corridor.  The applicant 
is required to contact John Saufferer, Real Estate & Building Services Manager 250-469-
8658 to register the ROW.   

6.4 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met.  

 If a fence is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 1100mm 
is required. Any gate is to open with out special knowledge.  

 Additional visible address is required from McInnis Ave. 

6.5 Fortis BC Inc – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along McInnes Road and Inkar Road. The applicant 
is responsible for costs associated with any change to the subject property's existing 
service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 30, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: May 2, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” Site Plan 
Schedule “B” Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
DRAFT Development Variance Permit DP15-0072 DVP15-0073 

148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP15-0050 Owner: Dave Rolleston 

Address: 776 Fordham Road Applicant: Dave Rolleston 

Subject: Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0050 for Lot 
22, District Lot 357, ODYD, Plan 18457, located on 776 Fordham Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.5(b): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Subdivision Regulations 

To vary the minimum lot depth from 30.0 m permitted to 27.6 m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit application for minimum lot depth to facilitate a two 
lot subdivision. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the requested variance to reduce the minimum lot depth from 30.0 m 
permitted to 27.6 m proposed to facilitate a two lot subdivision. The lot width and area exceed 
the minimum requirements for both proposed lots, as shown in the Zoning Analysis table below. 
The existing house will remain on the east portion of the property and no variances to setbacks 
are required. The lot to be created on the west portion of the property will have a buildable area 
of approximately 221.5 m2 (2,384 ft2) within required setbacks, which is sufficient area to 
construct a dwelling that is consistent with the character of the neighbourhood. 

Although variances to subdivision regulations are not typically supported, the size of the lot and 
siting of the existing house allow subdivision of the property without significantly altering the 

164



DVP15-0050 – Page 2 

 
 

character of the area, and without varying any setbacks or rezoning to a zone that permits 
narrower lots. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting neighbouring properties within 50 m. No major 
concerns regarding the requested variance were identified through this consultation. To date, 
staff have not been contacted with any questions or concerns about the application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the northeast side of Fordham Road between McClure Road 
and Raymer Road in the City’s North Mission – Crawford Sector. The property is designated S2RES 
– Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent 
Growth Boundary. The surrounding area is characterized by single family residential 
development. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing  

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing  

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing  

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing  

 

Subject Property Map: 776 Fordham Road 
 

 

 

165



DVP15-0050 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
RU1 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSED (WEST 

PORTION) 
PROPOSED (EAST 

PORTION) 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 591.5 m2 863.6 m2 

Lot Width 17.0 m 21.8 m 31.4 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 27.6 m  27.6 m  

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum lot depth from 30.0 m permitted to 27.6 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated March 20, 2015. 

6.3 FortisBC – Electric  

 There are primary distribution facilities along Fordham Road. The existing service will be 
bisected by the proposed lot line and passes over the building area of the proposed west 
lot. As a result the existing service may have to be reconfigured and / or protected by 
appropriate land rights. The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any changes 
tot he proposed lots’ existing service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land 
rights where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 4, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 13, 2015  
 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

166



DVP15-0050 – Page 4 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Proposed Subdivision Layout 
Draft Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0050 
 

167



168



169



170



171



172



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 16, 2015 

  

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 Owner: Marcel and Bertha Gal 

Address: 605 Monterey Road Applicant: Marcel Gal 

Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0248 for Lot 13, Section 
23, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 25160, located on 605 Monterey Road, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0055 for 
Lot 13, Section 23, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 25160, located on 605 Monterey Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.6.6(e): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum rear yard for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a building from 6.0 m 
permitted to 2.0 m proposed for those portions of the building shown on Schedule “A”. 

Section 13.6.6(g): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum distance between two single detached housing units from 4.5 m 
permitted to 3.8 m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit is valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

 

173



DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 – Page 2 

 
 

 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of a second dwelling, and a 
Development Variance Permit to reduce the minimum rear yard and distance between dwellings 
to facilitate the development of a second dwelling. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning staff supports the form and character and requested variances for the second 
dwelling on the subject property. 

Form and Character 

The proposed design and siting of the second dwelling meet the Development Permit guidelines 
for Intensive Residential – Carriage House / Two Dwelling Housing. The design generally reflects 
the character of the neighbourhood and the existing dwelling, and respects the privacy of 
adjacent properties. 

During staff review, it was identified that the subject property is within an area of relatively high 
water table and concerns were raised regarding minimum elevations and groundwater levels. To 
address these concerns, the applicant provided a surveyed site plan that shows the existing 
basement and proposed slab for the second dwelling are at a higher elevation than Monterey 
Road to the east of the property.  

Variances 

The requested variances are to reduce the minimum 
rear yard from 6.0 m permitted to 2.0 m proposed 
and to reduce the minimum distance between the 
two dwellings from 4.5 m permitted to 3.8 m 
proposed.  

The rear lot line, on the south side of the property, 
abuts the side lot line of 611-615 Monterey Road and 
the requested variance to 2.0 m is consistent with a 
side yard setback for the RU6 zone. The setback to 
the east side lot line is larger than required and 
creates a buffer between the second dwelling and 
the rear yard of the adjacent property at 535 
Monterey Road. 

The total buildable area for the second dwelling is 
relatively limited given the location of the existing 
house. Reducing the distance between dwellings 
allows a wider buildable area for the second dwelling 
without additional impacts to adjacent properties. 

Neighbour Consultation 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting 
public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting 
neighbouring properties within 50 m. No major 
concerns regarding the requested variances were 

Front Lot Line 

S
id

e
 L

o
t 

L
in

e
 

Rear Lot Line 

S
id

e
 L

o
t 

L
in

e
 (

F
la

n
k
in

g
 S

tr
e
e
t)

 

174



DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 – Page 3 

 
 

identified through this consultation. To date, staff has not been contacted with any questions or 
concerns about the application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In 2007, the owner applied to rezone the subject property from RU1 to RU6 and build a second 
dwelling with variances to the minimum rear yard and distance between dwellings. The rezoning 
was adopted and Council authorized the Development Permit / Development Variance Permit on 
August 5, 2008. The second dwelling was not constructed and the permit lapsed. 

The owner has submitted a new Development Permit / Development Variance Permit application 
to construct the second dwelling. The proposed design has changed somewhat from the original 
application; however, the siting and associated variances remain the same. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the southeast side of Monterey Road between Springfield Road 
and Cactus Road in the City’s Rutland Sector. The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two 
Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 
The surrounding area is primarily single and two dwelling residential development with some 
institutional uses to the southwest and north. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing  Single dwelling housing 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Two dwelling housing 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

 

Subject Property Map: 605 Monterey Road 
 

175



DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 – Page 4 

 
 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 800 m2 1,084 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 20.0 m 24.2 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 46.3 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Height 9.5 m / 2 ½ storeys Meets requirements 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m Meets requirements 

Minimum Side Yard (east) 2.0 m 4.6 m 

Minimum Side Yard (west) 
4.5 m 

6.0 m (to garage) 
4.9 m 

7.9 m (to garage) 

Minimum Rear Yard 6.0 m 2.0 m  

Minimum Separation Between 
Dwellings 

4.5 m 3.8 m  

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 4 stalls Meets requirements 

Private Open Space 30 m2 per dwelling Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum rear yard from 6.0 m permitted to 2.01 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum separation between dwellings from 4.5 m permitted to 3.84 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

176



DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 – Page 5 

 
 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows are required as per the BC Building Code 2012. 

 Spatial calculation will be required to allow for unprotected openings for both dwellings. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandums, dated March 31, 2015. 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Both dwellings require Class A non-combustible roofing material (e.g. asphalt shingle) and 
non-combustible siding or stucco. 

 The second dwelling shall have a visible address off of Monterey Road. 

6.4 FortisBC - Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along Monterey Road. The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  November 24, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 15, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

177



DP14-0248 / DVP15-0055 – Page 6 

 
 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Permit No. DP14-0248 / Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0055 
Schedule A: Site Plan and Floor Plans 
Schedule B: Elevations and Colour Board 

178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - May 26 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - May 26 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11056 - OCP15-0002 - Shared Gardens Amendments to OPC Bylaw No. 10500.pdf
	4.2 BL11096 - TA15-0001- Amendments to Include Shared and Community Gardens.pdf
	4.3 BL11098 OCP15-0005 5000 Gordon Drive.pdf
	4.4 BL11099 Z15-0019 5000 Gordon Drive.pdf
	6.1 Water St 1370 Report LL15-0005.pdf
	6.1 Water St 1370 Attachments LL15-0005.pdf
	7.1 BL11068 Z15-0001 4962 Lakeshore Road.pdf
	7.2 Lakeshore Rd 4962 Report DP15-0009 DVP15-0008.pdf
	7.2 Lakeshore Rd 4962 Attachments DP15-0009 DVP15-0008.pdf
	7.3 BL10782 - 1429 KLO Road - Arnold and Melitta Frank.pdf
	7.4 KLO Rd 1429 Report DP14-0258 DVP14-0259.pdf.pdf
	7.4 KLO Rd 1429 Attachments DP14-0258 DVP14-0259.pdf
	7.5 Lake Ave 283 Report HAP15-0003.pdf
	7.5 Lake Ave 283 Attachments HAP15-0003.pdf
	7.6 Caliburn Ct 228 Report DVP15-0093.pdf
	7.6 Caliburn Ct 228 Attachments DVP15-0093.pdf
	7.7 Coronation Ave 840 Report DP15-0090-DVP15-0091.pdf
	7.7 Coronation Ave 840 Attachments DP15-0090 DVP15-0091.pdf
	7.7 DP15-0090DVP15-0091 - DVPermit_15-05-19.pdf
	7.8 15-05-20_Report DP15-0072-DVP15-0073.pdf
	7.8 McInnes Ave 1441 Attachments DP15-0072 DVP15-0073.pdf
	7.9 Fordham Rd 776 Report DVP15-0050.pdf
	7.9 Fordham Rd 776 Attachments DVP15-0050.pdf
	7.10 Monterey Rd 605 Report DP14-0248 DVP15-0055.pdf
	7.10 Monterey Rd 605 Attachments DP14-0248 DVP15-0055.pdf

